
 

 

Copeland Borough Council 
The Market Hall 
Market Place 
Whitehaven 
CA28 7JG  

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

Venue: This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not 
take place in a physical location  

Date:   Thursday, 15th April, 2021 
Time:   10.00 am 
Contact Officer: Rose Blaney   Tel: 07385 362773 

 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:   

  
To receive declarations by Members and/ or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or 
other registrable interests which have not already been declared in the 
Council’s Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a 
disclosable pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting).  
 
Members are advised however, in the interests of clarity and transparency, 
to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable pecuniary 
interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as any 
other interests.  
 
Members are reminded that they may not, by law, participate or vote in 
any discussion in a meeting on a matter in which they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest  
 
Members are advised that they should leave the room during consideration 
of any items of business in which they have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest. 
 

 

 

3. Minutes of the meeting held on 19 February and 22 March 2021  1 - 12 

4. Executive Forward Plan  13 - 18 

5. Update from Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee   

6. Update from the Single Table Trade Union Group (STTUG) representative   

Public Document Pack



 

 

7. 2020/2021 Finance Report - Quarter 3  19 - 30 

8. 2020/2021 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 3  31 - 40 

9. Monitoring Officers Report - Verbal Update   

10. Task and Finish Group Updates  41 - 42 

11. Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme  43 - 48 

 
Membership: Councillors John Kane (Chair), Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair), James Date, 
Gemma Dinsdale, Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-Bulman, Ged McGrath, 
Sam Meteer, Sam Pollen and Eileen Weir 

 
Contacts:  Direct Dial: 07385 362806 
   E-mail:  clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk 
   Website: www.copeland.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON FRIDAY, 19 FEBRUARY 2021 
 

Present: Councillors John Kane, in the Chair; James Date, Gemma Dinsdale, 
Jeanette Forster, Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-Bulman, Ged McGrath, Sam Pollen 
and Eileen Weir 
 
Officers: Steven Brown (Director of Financial Resources) Sarah Pemberton 
(Director of Corporative Services and Commercial Strategy (Monitoring Officer)), 
Stephanie Shaw (Democratic Services Manager), Clive Willoughby (Democratic 
Services Officer) and Rose Blaney (Electoral and Democratic Services Officer) 
 
Also in Attendance: Mayor Mike Starkie. 
 

OSC161 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Felicity Wilson. 
 

OSC162 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:  
 
No Declarations of Interest were made. 
 

OSC163 Minutes of the meeting held on 17 December 2020  
 
Councillors reviewed the minutes of the previous meetings.  
 
Councillor Pollen commented on the timing issues for receiving budget papers 
and finance performance reports that had been highlighted as a concern during 
the previous meeting. It was noted that, due to the delay in receiving 
information from the Government for the Budget, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting (OSC) was taking place after the Executive, which was 
against the norm as highlighted in the minutes of the previous meeting and 
needed to be taken into account. Councillor Pollen also highlighted that the 
budget papers had been received only a few days prior for most, if not all, 
councillors through no fault of the officers, which lead to an insufficient amount 
of time being given to read, understand and scrutinise the papers effectively.  
 
The Chair took this opportunity to highlight the aim of the meeting to review 
and question the Budget papers. 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Councillors reiterated the concern with not being able to scrutinise the papers 
fully in the timescale given ahead of the OSC meeting, through no fault of the 
council, officers or postal service. 
 
RESOLVED – That with a vote of six for and two abstentions, the Committee 
agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 17 December, 2020 were 
approved as a true and accurate record. 
 
 
[Councillor Dinsdale joined the meeting at 2:07pm] 
 

OSC164 Executive Forward Plan  
 
The Committee reviewed the Executive Forward Plan. 
 
Councillor Pollen commented that on page 8 of the pack it was noted that the 
Executive meeting on the Draft Budget took place before the OSC meeting. 
 
Councillor Forster requested further information regarding Moss Bay Enterprise 
Trust. The Mayor informed Councillor Forster that it is an asset of Britain’s 
Energy Coast (BEC) and is under discussion between BEC and Cumbria County 
Council with more information being available at a later date. The Scrutiny 
Officer confirmed that they would provide OSC with further information once it 
was available. 
 
RESOLVED – That,  
 

a) With no objections raised, the Executive Forward Plan was noted. 

b) The Scrutiny Officer will provide OSC with further information on Moss 

Bay Trust Enterprise when it is available. 

 
OSC165 Draft Budget  

 
The Mayor presented his Draft Budget to the Committee.  
 
Members were then invited to ask the Mayor and the Directors present 
questions. 
 
Councillor Jones-Bulman asked if the further costs onto and within the funeral 
services over the past two years is justifiable. The Mayor responded that the 
increases have been kept to two percent annually, with inflation, which was 
reasonable. Previously it had been seven percent per annum. They Mayor also 

Page 2



highlighted that significant capital investment had been placed into 
Bereavement services (the Crematorium and Cemeteries) being run by Copeland 
Borough Council (CBC) along with vast improvements to the services offered. 
The Director of Corporate Resources and Commercial Strategy noted that CBC 
had tried to keep those costs empathetic and at an acceptable level. CBC are 
very aware when setting the Fees and Charges regarding what that means to 
residents and the sensitivity around that. The Director also highlighted, as 
Councillor Jones-Bulman had mentioned Funeral Poverty as an issue, that there 
were now other optional services to help residents through reduce rates 
through more choices being available. The Mayor also highlighted that he would 
take on board adding further communication around Bereavement for 
councillors, to enable them to be more aware of the benefits CBC are offering to 
residents.  
 
Councillor Dinsdale asked for further information on where the money from the 
fines received due to littering and fly-tipping due the large increase as noted in 
the Fees and Charges. The Director of Corporate Resources and Commercial 
Strategy informed OSC that CBC have taken the opportunity to increase the fees 
as, the figures before now, have been below the regulatory limit and make no 
apologies for raising the figure now. The Director assured members that the 
money received from the fines is invested back into the service, to help support 
the service. Especially as not all of the services that CBC offer are statutory 
services, but they still need to be supported. They Mayor highlighted that CBC 
are not profiting from the fines, money coming in from fines does not cover the 
costs of dealing with the issues. 
 
Councillor Dinsdale also asked, on behalf of residents, regarding legal obligations 
for collecting waste, if there is a specific amount that needs to be collected and 
if they are liable for a refund should that amount not be reached. The Mayor 
confirmed that there would be no refund given. The Mayor also noted that, 
while aware of issues of some collection being missed, the reasons for this was 
not always at the fault of the crews (narrow streets typical of our geography, 
parked cars etc.). With the last twelve months also bringing their own issues. 
CBC have aimed to provide residents with as much information regarding missed 
collections through the Communications department. The Director of Corporate 
Resources and Commercial Strategy reiterated that there would not be any 
refunds, and highlighted that collecting domestic household waste was a 
statutory obligation but there was no prescribed revenue element of 
expenditure applied. The Director also expressed their thanks to the Waste and 
Recycle teams for all their hard work through the last twelve months for their 
everyday effort being put in to get the work completed. Daily communications 
to residents and households as CBC know through in-cab technology who has 
been missed, where and why and work immediately through every effort to 

Page 3



organise the logistics of rescheduling the revisits and recollection of those 
rounds. The Director noted that every effort goes in every day to aim to collect 
100% household refuse, even with issues such as lack of resources. The Mayor 
also highlighted issues with the current fleet contract which doesn’t help with 
resilience issues. 
 
Councillor Hailes referred to page 19 regarding funding for Covid-19 and 
payment of various grants to local businesses and wished to express his thanks 
to all the council, specifically Janet Sinnott and team, for all their work and help 
in helping local businesses going above and beyond. The Mayor agreed that the 
message with be passed onto the team through the Director of Financial 
Resources, highlighting that Copeland has been the best at distributing the 
grants for Covid-19 in a timely manner.  
 
Councillor Pollen noted his agreement with both Councillor Hailes and the 
Mayor, that staff have been exceptional in such unprecedented and challenging 
times. Councillor Pollen welcomed the report, but noted that due to the 
timeline, OSC will be bringing more of their questions to the Full Council 
meeting scheduled the following week, after a chance to further scrutinise the 
budget papers. Councillor Pollen noted that there are a lot of positives, but also 
negatives, following budget pressures which have been identified throughout 
the Draft Budget paperwork including lack of revenue from commercialisation 
and council tax leading to CBC needing to use the reserves and having to 
navigate such challenging times even with some promising projects and grants 
coming in for the future. Councillor Pollen highlighted the external auditor 
report which had been received late and its findings which the Mayor explained 
in further detail. 
 
Councillor Weir asked whether the additional grant on page 20 of £450k has 
been provided or is just provisional, and also asked if the additional budget of 
£145k mentioned in point 2.12 to meet the external audit fees and resources 
required it to cover Grant Thornton’s outstanding bills. The Director of Financial 
Resources answered that the £450k has not been received yet but CBC have 
been informed that we will be getting the money as part of the settlement. In 
terms of the £145k, is being split between increased Audit fees and to cover 
costs of increasing the capacity of the Finance team. 
 
Councillor Pollen reiterated the reason for the lack of questions at today’s 
meeting are due to lack of time to fully scrutinise the papers with more 
questions to come at the Full Council the next week. 
 

Page 4



The Chair thanked the Mayor and the Directors for attending the meeting and 
providing OSC with their answers. The Scrutiny Officer reiterated this statement 
and sentiment, also thanking members for their attendance. 
 

OSC166 Date and Time of Next Meeting:  
 
The next meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will be held on 
Thursday 1st April 2021 at 2pm via virtual meeting. 
 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 3.22 pm  
 

 
Mayor 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON MONDAY, 22 MARCH 2021 
 

Present: Councillors John Kane, in the Chair; Felicity Wilson, James Date, 
Jeffrey Hailes, Linda Jones-Bulman, Ged McGrath, Sam Pollen and Eileen Weir 
 
Officers: Pat Graham (Chief Executive), Clinton Boyce (Solicitor), Clive 
Willoughby (Democratic Services Officer) and Rose Blaney (Scrutiny Officer). 
 
Also in Attendance: Mayor Mike Starkie 
 
 

OSC167 Apologies for Absence  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Jeanette Forster. 
 

OSC168 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:  
 
No Declarations of Interest were made. 
 

OSC169 Locally Led Re-Organisation Of Local Government In Cumbria  
 
The Chief Executive gave the committee a brief overview of the process of Local 
Government Re-Organisation (LGR) and where Cumbria currently is in the 
process. They then took the Committee through the draft consultation response 
that the Executive will be submitting to Government on behalf of the Council, 
taking the committee through each proposal, while giving member the chance 
to ask questions at the end of the each proposal. 
Members took this opportunity to thank the Chief Executive and all other 
officers involved for their hard work in putting the proposal together, organising 
member briefings and  
 
East / West Option 

The Chief Executive’s key highlights for this option included; representing local 
needs while working at a strategic level, savings being made but not through 
excess cuts and redundancies giving the Unitaries the ability to reinvest and not 
just change the system but improve it. This option will also look to keep Police 
and Fire at the Pan-Cumbrian level with an integration of a Blue Light Service, 
strengthen the Adults & Children Services, while also highlighting the West’s 
culture and noting that continuing the link with Allerdale is key. 

Public Document Pack

Page 7



Councillor Weir asked whether the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) 2021 
elections would change or influence being able to move forward with LGR. The 
Chief Executive explained that there will be no structural change due to the 
election and that the elections must go ahead due to being delayed from 2020 
due to the Pandemic. They also highlighted that the current PCC is supportive of 
the change as Police will remain at Pan-Cumbria level and welcomes the 
introduction of a Blue Light Service. 

Councillor Pollen noted that Councillor Meteer has previously put in a motion to 
support the Cumbria County Council (CCC) One Unitary proposal, and would like 
that noted in the minutes due to Councillor Meteer not being in attendance at 
this meeting. Councillor Pollen also noted that there were a lot of positives for 
Copeland’s proposal but believe that the simplification from a one unitary 
proposal would be better than any other option with the value for money 
statistics within the CCC proposal showing a larger saving than Copeland. 
Councillor Pollen asked for confirmation regarding the possibility of a Mayoral 
model being implicated as highlighted at the previous member briefing. Mayor 
Starkie answered that, whichever bid prevails, the residents will have only one 
council who deals with all the functions. CCC have identified a number of savings 
but noted that savings do not always equate to value for money. The Mayor also 
highlighted that the Mayoral model, while a possibility, is for the new unitary to 
decide. The Combined Authority is not another tier but rather a strategic body 
designed to attract investment. 

Councillor Hailes highlighted that the main aspect is about what is best for the 
residents and that he had been doing some surveying within their own 
community and work colleague, the majority of whom have shown support for 
the CBC model. 

Councillor Wilson noted that this was an interesting discussion, a historical 
change, and while originally had a reservation regarding splitting with Barrow-
In-Furness, through the further information being available now understands 
the reason for this split. They also asked, going forward with the Unitaries, how 
will we deal with knowing who needs to be contacted for what issue. Currently, 
there is some confusion as to who needs to be contacted to deal with certain 
issues. The Chief Executive explained that, the most obvious benefit for 
residents regarding the implementation of either one or two Unitaries, there 
will be one number for residents to ring to access services. 

The Chair asked how much say Copeland will have in making decisions moving 
forward as Copeland is the smallest of the three West districts. The Chief 
Executive answered that with a unitary in place; Copeland, Allerdale and Carlisle 
will no longer exist. It will all be one council for that area. The level of 
democratic accountability will presumably be based on county divisions (this still 
needs to be confirmed).  Council’s aren’t allowed to favour one area over 

Page 8



another, so even with Copeland being the smallest population wise, this will 
have no bearing on the representation and democratic accountability within the 
unitary. 

 
Bay Option  

The Chief Executive’s key highlights for this option included; noting that there 
are a lot of merits to the proposal, specifically regarding identity, community, 
scale and alignment with health boundaries, with a lot of support for the 
proposal especially as there is a huge feeling with the south of the county and 
Lancaster that the option would work. However, Copeland note that the current 
issues with the proposal include; it being light on detail on the aspiration, vision 
and priorities, while noting from an administrative basis that is will cause 
disruption across two counties which is not addressed within the proposal. This 
option also has the largest implementation cost of all four proposals and may 
lead to a judicial review as it does not cover what happens with Lancashire not 
the outstanding objection from Lancashire’s PCC. 

They Chair asked about the population for figures of Lancaster. It was confirmed 
that, according to the 2019 Population figure within the Bay Proposal, Lancaster 
has 146,038. 

 
North / South Option 
The Chief Executive’s key highlights for this option included; the strengths 
around the health alignment and keeping Carlisle and Eden together, noting 
how similar the bid is to Copeland and Allerdale’s, while noting that not much is 
said regarding cost, value for money and geography. However, the fundamental 
for Copeland with the option is around the culture, community, identity with 
Allerdale. Noting that not having that link would have a negative impact on 
Copeland moving forward through economics, nuclear knowledge and the 
supply chain. 

There were no further questions asked regarding this proposal. 

 
One Unitary 

The Chief Executive’s key highlights for this option included; benefits around 
simplicity, potential ease of implementation if you accept CCC as a continuing 
authority, population size, single point of contact and continuity. The proposal 
majors very heavily on continuity but is light on details on opportunities for 
transformation and improvement with a focus on strategic service delivery 
rather than local. Copeland are concerned regarding the financial basic for the 
figures, although the savings projected are significant, all other proposed 
models were based on a collective financial piece of work to be accurate. 
Copeland also believe that it is currently too early to make commitments to 

Page 9



Town & Parish Councils, as that will be for the new unitary (whichever is chosen) 
to have that conversation. 

The Chair asked how the one unitary provide all the statutory services that 
Copeland currently provide, specifically around employment. The Chief 
Executive answered that this would come through a process of transition over 
the next two to three years to centralise the services. For all models, there will 
be efficiencies around staffing but equally there is an opportunity for a number 
of staff to be retained and promoted. The Cumbrian economy is largely 
underpinned by the public purse, focus needs to be on making the councils as 
effective as possible. There is an opportunity to create jobs if the model is done 
right through economic growth and development. However, they noted that no 
matter the model chosen, it will be difficult on the workforce and individuals. 

 

Not relating to any particular model, Councillor Weir asked for further 
clarification regarding KPMG procurement & appointment, as well as links Grant 
Thornton. The Chief Executive clarified that KPMG and Grant Thornton are 
unrelated commissions and issues. Grant Thornton are CBC’s auditors and will 
continue to be. KMPG were commissioned to help with the proposal, with 
Allerdale taking charge of commissioning a consultant (KPMG), while Copeland 
worked with the Northern four councils. There was a clear procurement process 
undertaken. KPMG have also been re-commissioned to help with the 
consultation proposal. KPMG are also supporting North Yorkshire and are the 
premier consultation firm who will be helpful moving forward. The Chief 
Executive reiterated that there is no connection between KMPG and Grant 
Thornton. 

 

 

Councillors were reminded of the two recommendation that they would be 
voting on at the end. Each councillor was then asked for their opinion on the 
proposed models and answered as follows: 

 Councillor Date highlighted their support for East/West proposal. 
However, they noted that their preferred model was not a proposal 
which had been submitted which would have been 
Copeland/Allerdale/Barrow. 

 Councillor Hailes thanked to Chief Executive for the presentation, 
while offered their support for the East/West proposal. 

 Councillor Jones-Bulman informed members that they had 
unfortunately, lost connection for most of the meeting. However. They 

Page 10



are supportive of the One Unitary model due to ease of access of 
services. 

 Councillor McGrath highlighted their support for East/West proposal. 
However, they also noted that their preferred model was not a 
proposal which had been submitted which would have been 
Copeland/Allerdale/Barrow. 

 Councillor Pollen offered their support for One Unitary model. Also 
noting on behalf of Cllr Meteer, that they have also previously 
supported this model. Councillor Pollen commented that all in 
attendance were in agreement that there needs to be some change, as 
the current model is not fit for purpose through government cuts. But 
noted that they had some concerns regarding implementing a mayoral 
model and highlighted previous comments and concerns made 
regarding the decision making process. 

 Councillor Wilson offered support for East/West proposal. However, 
they noted that their preferred model was not a proposal which had 
been submitted which would have been Copeland/Allerdale/Barrow. 
Councillor Wilson also commented on the great commitment needed 
by officers and councillors to make it work and maintain a strong if not 
better service for the community. 

 Councillor Weir offered their support for East/West proposal. 
However, they noted that their preferred model was not a proposal 
which had been submitted which would have been 
Copeland/Allerdale/Barrow. 

 Councillor Kane questioned why Copeland/Allerdale/Barrow not an 
option put forward, as similar to other councillors would have 
preferred this option. The Chief Executive answered that there was a 
functional and procedural issue with Barrow as it is not co-terminate 
from a boundary perspective. South of Copeland borders with South 
Lakes who then borders with Barrow. But they noted that it is a valid 
point being made, all recognise the cultural and industrial history with 
Barrow. When Copeland was working with the Northern four councils 
to quickly put bids together, it was only during the process that the 
North/South proposal came into play. Carlisle can see that they can go 
either way on either option. There would have been an option for the 
Copeland/Allerdale/Barrow proposal but with there being no 
boundary, there would have been procedural challenges. 

 Councillor Jones-Bulman asked whether this was not too late in the 
process or if there was time to take the issue to Full Council. The Chief 

Page 11



Executive explained that there were 6 weeks to submit the proposal 
bid – which included OSC meetings and member briefings, so there 
was significant engagement – but it is an Executive function. They also 
noted that there is a recognition of the different views and highlighted 
that they will be reflected in the report to the Executive and 
acknowledges the councillors feeling towards the decision making 
process. 

 

Recommendation: With a vote of 6 votes for, 0 Against and 2 Abstentions, it 
was agreed that Overview and Scrutiny recommends that all of the opinions 
from today’s meeting be included within the Executive’s response. 

(Following clarification of the recommendation, Councillor Jones-Bulman 
commented that they would have voted against.) 

 
 
 
The Meeting closed at 11.29 am  
 

 
Chair 

Page 12



  

  

Executive 16 March 2021 

MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN  

  

This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) 

Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period.  

  

A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers 

performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant 

(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its 

effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s 

constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend 

the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a 

permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough.  

  

A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made. 

An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be 

reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter 

notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred.  

  

Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as 

Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt. 

  

Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not 

containing confidential or exempt information.  

  

 

   

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 4



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

Moss Bay Enterprise 

Trust 

Executive Executive 

20 April 2021 

 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive  

 

Yes No 

Corporate Debt 

Recovery Policy 

Council Executive 

20 April 2021 

 

Council 

27 April 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

Constitution 

Refresh/Update 

 

Council Council 

27 April 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

Constitution –  

Financial Regulations 

Council Council 

27 April 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

Draft Copeland 

Shopfront Design 

Guide 

Council Council 

27 April 2021 

Environment, Place 

and Inclusive 

Communities  

Cllr Andy Pratt 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive  

 

No No 

P
age 14



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

2020/21 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 4 

Executive Executive 

May 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2020/21 Finance 

Report – Quarter 4  

 

Executive   Executive 

May 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

Calendar of 

Meetings 2021-22 

Council 

(AGM) 

May 2021 Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

No No 

Outside Bodies 

Annual Report 

Council OSC 

May 2021 

 

Council  

June 2021 

 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

No No 

Annual Scrutiny 

Report 

Council OSC 

May 2021 

 

Council  

June 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

No No 

P
age 15



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

 

Health and Safety 

Monitoring Half 

Yearly Report 

1st Jan – 30th Jun ‘21 

Executive Executive 

July 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive 

 

No No 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 1 

Executive Executive 

August 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 1  

 

Executive   Executive 

August 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 2 

Executive Executive 

November 2021 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 2  

 

Executive   Executive 

November 2021 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

Yes No 

P
age 16



Report  Who will 

make the 

decision  

Date on which the 

decision will be 

made  

Portfolio  

Holder 

Lead Officer  Key  
Decision 

Likely to contain 
confidential 
or exempt 

information 
 

 

Copeland 

Community Lottery 

Executive Executive 

January 2022 

Commercial Services 

Cllr Steven Morgan 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Council 

Performance Plan – 

Quarter 3 

Executive Executive 

February 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

Sarah Pemberton – 

Director of Corporate 

Services and Commercial  

Strategy (M.O.) 

 

Yes No 

2021/22 Finance 

Report – Quarter 3  

 

Executive   Executive 

February 2022 

Mayor 

Mike Starkie 

Steven Brown –  

Director of Financial 

Resources  

 

Yes No 

Health and Safety 

Monitoring Half 

Yearly Report 

1st Jul – 31st Dec ‘21 

Executive Executive 

February 2022 

Nuclear & Corporate 

Services 

Cllr David Moore 

 

Pat Graham –  

Chief Executive 

 

No No 

       

  

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Overview and Scrutiny Committee 1st April 

 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER 
 
LEAD OFFICER: 

Mayor Mike Starkie (Portfolio Holder for 
Finance). 
Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources 

REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources 
 
WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE? 
This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the latest 
budget monitoring report to the Executive; included as Appendix A. 
 

SUMMARY: 
This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the 
2020/21 Q3 budget monitoring report presented to the Executive on 18th 
February 2021; included as Appendix A. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to:  

1. Note the Q3 budget monitoring report to the Executive attached. 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee receive the quarterly budget 
monitoring reports to the Executive for consideration.  

2. CONCLUSIONS 

2.1. The Committee is asked to note the report. 

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS  

3.1. Legal and Monitoring Officer’s comments are: No legal issues 
arise from the report. 

3.2. The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the 
attached report. 

3.3. EIA Comments: N/A 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



3.4. Policy Framework: N/A 

3.5. Other consultee comments, if any: N/A 

List of Appendices  

Appendix A – Latest quarterly budget monitoring report to the Executive.

Page 20



EXECUTIVE – DATE 
 
2020/21 Revenue & Capital Budget Monitoring Report – Q3 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER: Mayor Mike Starkie (Portfolio Holder for Finance). 
LEAD OFFICER: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources. 
REPORT AUTHOR: Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources. 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
This Budget Monitoring report sets out the Quarter 3 (Q3 - to the end of 
December 2020) forecast year-end results against the Council’s Revenue 
and Capital Budgets for the 2020/21 financial year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
1. Note the 2020/21 revenue forecast outturn net overspend of £180k, (See 

Paragraph 1.5 and Appendix A);  
2. Note the summary of the revenue outturn variances set out in paragraph 

1.7);  
3. Note the revised capital budget for 2020/21 (See Paragraph 1.12). 
4. To recommend to Council inclusion of Capitalisation Flexibility of £100k 

to be funded from Capital Receipts; and 
5. To recommend to Council revise the capital programme for 2020/21 as 

set out in Appendix B. 

 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1. This report contains information on the Forecast Outturn position on 
spending against the Council’s Revenue Budget for 2020/21 following 
discussions with Budget Managers. 

1.2.  The Net Revenue Budget agreed by Council on 10th February 2020 
for 2020/21 was £8,035k. The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, 
subsequent lockdown on the 23rd March 2020, phased reopening of 
the economy and further lockdowns has had a significant impact on 
local authority finances to date and is expected to continue to for the 

Page 21



remainder of this financial year. In response to the pandemic 
additional costs have been incurred and/or income has reduced in 
the majority of some service areas across the Council. In response to 
the financial impact on local authorities revenue budgets, 
Government has announced a number of funding packages: 

- Emergency funding towards the additional response costs 
incurred totalling £1,275k, Council has approved the receipt of 
this funding and the subsequent increase to the net budget; 

- New Burdens grant funding of £130k to meet the delivery costs 
associated with awarding business rates grants to Local 
businesses; the net budget has been increased accordingly; and 

- An income compensation scheme for lost sales, fees and charges 
was announced; committing to fund 75% of losses over a 
threshold (the threshold for CBC is £305k). Income under this 
scheme received to date is £133k; the net budget has been 
increased accordingly; and 

- Grant funding of £769k was also received to provide council tax 
relief to economically vulnerable people and households, £20k of 
this grant was allocated to support Local Welfare or similar 
schemes and the net budget has been increased accordingly. 

1.3. The resulting increase in the Council’s net budget is set out below: 

£’000 Budget 

Net Budget Approved by Council (Feb 2020) 8,035 

Emergency COVID19 funding towards the additional 
response costs 

1,275 

New Burdens grant funding of £130k  130 

Compensation scheme for lost sales, fees and charges 133 

Grant was allocated to support Local Welfare or similar 
schemes 

20 

Revised Net Budget (Dec 2020) 9,563 

 

Page 22



1.4. Following the COVID19 outbreak and resulting change in economic 
outlook for the country, there are a number of efficiencies in the 
current budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2020/21 
– 2024/25 that are unlikely to be fully delivered or met by 
Government funding. This will have a financial impact in year and will 
be reviewed as part of setting the 2021/22 budget and MTFS, these 
include the following items in the current Budget and MTFS: 

- Net income of additional Commercial Activity of £1.35m by 2023; 
£338k in 2020/21 increasing to £1,350k by 2023/24;  

- Additional efficiency savings of £250k in 2020/21 increasing to 
£500k by 2021/22; and 

- Business Rates Pooling income of £200k in 2020/21. 

1.5. The forecast outturn position for Q3 is based on the best available 
information and budget managers’ estimates regarding income and 
expenditure as COVID19 impacts on their services. The table below 
summarises the forecast outturn position for Q3 against the Council’s 
Revenue Budget for 2020/21. 

£’000 
Revised 
Budget 

Net Exp Forecast Variance 

Net Expenditure on Services 9,563 9,030 9,643 80 

Less Sources of Finance (9,563) (7,172) (9,463) 100 

   Total 180 

 

1.6. The forecast outturn for the Council shows a net overspend of £180k. 
This is due to an overspend against service budgets of £80k and a 
shortfall in the forecast Sources of Finance of £100k relating to the 
Business Rates Pool. No additional Government funding has been 
assumed as part of the lost sales, fees and charges scheme. 

1.7. Service variances over £100k are summarised in the following 
paragraphs, with Appendix A showing all service areas. 

Page 23



 

Service £’000 Variance Q1 

Business Support (ICT) 369 

Financial Services 186 

Refuse & Recycling 1,009 

Revenues & Benefits 283 

Additional COVID19 Budget  (1,408) 

Various (359) 

Total 80 

 

1.8. A summary of the main variances are summarised below: 

a) Business Support (ICT); the forecast overspend of £369k 
primarily relates to additional server costs of £237k; some of 
these additional costs relate to COVID19 and upgrading our IT 
infrastructure however there is an underlying pressure from 
2019/20 requiring the budget to be rebased. 

b) Financial Services; the forecast overspend of £186k primarily 
relates to covid pressures on the GLL contract and less interest 
received on investments. 

c) Refuse and Recycling; there are COVID19 pressures in many 
areas across the service: 

o £305k of additional COVID related costs; 

o £367 loss of parking income due to Covid and offering free 
car parking; 

o £44k higher than budgeted business rates; 

o £61k loss of budgeted markets income; 

o £120k loss of trade waste income; 

o £74k extra staffing costs to operate green waste service; 

o £33k increased staffing costs on residents recycling service; 

Page 24



o £12k redundancy costs; and 

o £126k loss of budgeted recycling credits. 

d) Revenues & Benefits; an overspend of £283k is forecast. 
Additional costs have been incurred to pay business rate grants 
and apply reliefs, these have largely been met by additional 
grant however, income from Benefit overpayments and 
Council Tax summons has reduced significantly due to the 
demands on the service. 

2020/21 Efficiency Plan 

1.9. The 2019/20 Budget agreed by Council identified £1,425k of 
efficiencies required to balance the budget. The position against 
these for the year is set out in the table overleaf: 

Efficiencies £’000  Budget 
Forecast 
Outturn 

Variance 

Commercial Income (338) 0 338 

Efficiency Savings (250) 0 250 

Cost of the Copeland Centre (837) (837) 0 

Total (1,425) (837) 588 
 

General Reserves 

1.10. The General Reserve is part of our risk management process and is 
retained to protect the Council in the event of major unforeseen 
events as well as provide a buffer against future financial risks in the 
medium term; clearly the COVID19 pandemic is a major unforeseen 
event. The minimum level of General Reserve was agreed by Council 
in February 2020 at £2,000k. The table overleaf sets out the changes 
to the General Fund forecast to 31st March 2021: 

Page 25



 

 £’000 

Balance as at 1st April 2020 (based on the unaudited 
positon) 

(2,013) 

Forecast Outturn for 2020/21 180 

Forecast balance as at 31st March 2021 (1,833) 

Minimum level agreed by Council (Feb 2020) (2,000) 

 

1.11. The forecast General Reserve balance of £1,833k is below the 
minimum level of £2,000k agreed by Council in February 2020 which 
is not sustainable, whilst the General Reserve is sufficient to meet the 
forecast deficit in 2020/21, the Council must reinstate the reserve as 
part of the 2021/22 MTFS.   

Capital Budget 

1.12. Council approved the Capital Programme for 2020/21 at its meeting 
on 10th February 2020, this has been updated below with 2019/20 
provisional outturn amendments, amendments approved by Council 
and revisions following final grant approvals, this is set out in 
Appendix B.  

1.13. The Executive is asked to recommend to Council the following 
changes to the capital programme: 

- Inclusion of Capitalisation Flexibility of £100k to be funded from 
Capital Receipts; this will enable restructuring costs to be met 
from capital resources; and 

- To revise the capital programme for 2020/21 as set out in 
Appendix B. 

Treasury Management 

1.14. The Treasury Management function supports the overall objectives 
and priorities of the Council, by the use of effective treasury 
management techniques. The aim is to manage risks and ensure 
there are sufficient cash resources and long-term borrowings to 
finance the Council’s activities and capital investment programme 

Page 26



whilst balancing this to the secondary objective of trying to minimise 
the costs of the net interest budget.  

1.15.  Long term borrowing remains at £5m as at Q3 (£5m at 31/9/20) and 
investments are £42.245m as at 31st December. There is a net 
interest cost to the Council, this is due to interest on the loan being 
c7.5% and investment interest being around 0.05% included in the 
Council’s budget.   

1.16. The Council undertook no new borrowing in Q3 and is not expected 
to undertake any further long-term borrowing during 2020/21 in 
accordance with the 2020/21 Treasury Management Strategy.  

2. CONCLUSIONS 

2.1. The recommendations allow the preparation of the statutory 
financial statements of the Council. 

3. STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS  

3.1. Legal/ Monitoring Officer’s Comments are: No legal issues arise from 
the report. The report sets out the forecast financial outturn for the 
financial year 2020/21. 

3.2.  The Section 151 Officer’s comments are contained within the report. 

3.3. EIA Comments: Not applicable.  

3.4.  Policy Framework: Not applicable. 

3.5. Other Consultee Comments, if any: None. 

4. RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS 

4.1.  Contained within the report 

5. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE 
THE RISKS GOING TO BE MANAGED? 

5.1. The proposals will be managed by Director of Financial Resources. 

Page 27



6. WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS 
REPORT? 

6.1. Contained within the body of the report. 

List of Appendices  
 
Appendix A: 2020/21 Budget Monitoring Forecast Outturn by Service 
Appendix B: 2020/21 Capital Programme 
 
List of Background Documents: 
 
None 
 
  

Page 28



Appendix A 
2020/21 Budget Monitoring Forecast Outturn by Service 
 

 

Service Budget Net Expenditure Forecast Variance

Beacon Museum 279,867 137,720 279,867 0

Building Control 96,321 89,571 85,555 (10,766)

Business Support 918,379 995,640 1,287,198 368,819

Chief Executive (434,990) 626,181 (393,673) 41,317

Communications 88,626 95,857 84,120 (4,506)

Copeland Community Fund 0 305,147 0 0

Customer Services 360,262 229,656 321,546 (38,716)

Democratic Services 455,499 318,447 409,856 (45,643)

Development Control 37,689 21,829 69,549 31,860

Dir Corp Serv & Comm Strategy 318,379 212,641 281,701 (36,678)

Economic Development 197,292 (191,788) 182,127 (15,165)

Elections 120,684 20,311 107,568 (13,116)

Environmental Health 516,029 344,251 565,137 49,108

Financial Services 854,977 803,122 1,041,358 186,381

Human Resources 337,567 189,117 267,329 (70,238)

Internal Audit 124,877 49,180 65,571 (59,306)

Legal & Procurement Services 212,955 144,791 210,150 (2,805)

Nuclear 800 209,719 800 0

Park & Open Spaces (35,650) (75,683) (125,620) (89,970)

Property & Estates 231,051 403,675 157,843 (73,208)

Refuse & Recycling 2,033,076 2,119,069 3,042,153 1,009,077

Revenues & Benefits 675,100 1,729,195 958,478 283,378

Strategic Housing 535,269 53,312 519,500 (15,769)

Strategic Planning 230,941 198,969 225,005 (5,936)

Additional Budget to be allocated to services 1,408,115 0 0 (1,408,115)

Grand Total 9,563,115 9,029,931 9,643,118 80,003

Page 29



Appendix B 
2020/21 Capital Programme 

 Capital Scheme 

 Budget 

for 

2020/21 

 Spend to 

Date 
 Forecast  Variance 

 

Proposed 

budget 

virement 

to 

subsequa

nt years 

 Revised 

Budget 

for 

2020/21 

 Accommodation Strategy 1,413 1,015 1,016 (397) 397 1,016

 Whitehaven Cemetery Extension 240 0 67 (173) 173 67

 Bereavement Services 621 2 54 (567) 567 54

 Disabled Facilities Grants  1,040 290 1,040 0 0 1,040

 Town Centre Regeneration 1,011 0 0 (1,011) 1,011 0

 Development (incl LEP FHSF external funding) 2,299 692 1,561 (738) 738 1,561

 Coastal Programme (Phase 1&2) 509 95 509 0 0 509

 Beacon Virtual Museum 257 111 115 (142) 142 115

 IT Infrastructure 972 20 50 (922) 922 50

 Whitehaven Activity Centre 1,198 0 0 (1,198) 1,198 0

 Cleator Moor Activity Centre 247 0 0 (247) 0 247

 St Bees Ramp  300 0 0 (300) 300 0

 Commercial Investments 5,000 0 (5,000) 5,000 0

 Accountable Body - Coastal Activity Centre (Added to Capital Programme Council Sep 

2019) 
931 521 931 0 0

931

 Towns Fund (Added to Capital Programme Council Sep 2020) 1,125 111 1,125 0 0 1,125

 Accountable Body - Whitehaven Harbour Flood Defence Works - (Added to Capital 

Programme Council Dec 2020) 
150 50 150 0 0

150

 Capitalisation Flexibility (Proposed addition to the Capital Programme) 100 0 100 0 0 100

 ISH Project (Added to Capital Programme Council July 2020) 2,250 2,000 2,000 (250) 0 2,250

 Total 19,663 4,907 8,718 (10,945) 10,448 9,215  

P
age 30



  OSC010421 
 

 

1 

 
 

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UPDATE FOR QUARTER THREE OF 2020-21 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER:   Cllr David Moore 

LEAD OFFICER:  Sarah Pemberton,  
Director of Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy 
 

REPORT AUTHOR:  Gillian Butterworth,  
Performance and Risk Management Officer 

 

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE?   

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee supports the Executive in ensuring that 

the Council complies with its duties of Best Value and value for money.  It also 

has a key role to play in promoting and monitoring good performance 

management throughout the Council.    

 RECOMMENDATION:  

a) Note performance against Key Performance Indicators  

 

1.        INTRODUCTION 
1.1 The Executive monitor progress against the Council’s strategic ambitions 

through the Performance Management and Improvement Framework.  
This report presents the outturn position of Key Performance Indicators 
at the end of Quarter three 2020/21.  

 

2.0 DETAILS 
 
2.1  At the end of Quarter three; 

 79% of KPIs had met their target (19 out of 24) 
 These can be grouped to show; 

 67% of ‘corporately owned’ KPIs met their target. (8 out of 12). 

 92 % of non-corporately owned’ KPIs met their target (11 out of 12) 

 63 % of KPIs performed equal to or better than the same quarter last 
year (15 out of 24) 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 8



  OSC010421 
 

 

2 

 
 

2.2 Tables 1 and 2 show ‘at a glance’ which KPIs met their quarterly targets.  
 Full details are listed in Appendix A. 
 

Table 1.       Corporately owned KPIs 

 Performance Indicator 
Was 
Target 
Met? 

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-domestic Rates Collected  

KPI 10 Speed of processing - new HB claims  

KPI 11 Speed of processing - new CTR claims  

KPI 12 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for HB claims  

KPI 13 Speed of processing - changes of circumstances for CTR claims  

KPI 14 Homeless relief cases  

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse Project  

KPI 17 % Freedom of information requests resolved within timescale  

KPI 21 % 'major' planning applications determined within 13 weeks  

KPI 22 % planning 'minor' planning applications determined within 8 weeks  

KPI 23 Percentage of 'other' applications determined within 8 weeks  

KPI 24 Percentage of planning appeals dismissed  
 

Table 2      Non- Corporately owned KPIs 

 Performance Indicator 
Was 
Target 
Met? 

KPI 1 Percentage of Council Tax collected  

KPI 2 Number empty homes <6months brought back into use  

KPI 3 Number of new homes approved  

KPI 4 Number of new homes built  

KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE homes BUILT  

KPI 6 Number of larger family and aspirational homes built  

KPI 7 External funding for Economic Development Secured  

KPI 9 Local people supported with employability and skills  

KPI 16 Percentage of complaints resolved at stage one  

Page 32



  OSC010421 
 

 

3 

 
 

 Performance Indicator 
Was 
Target 
Met? 

KPI 18 % household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting   

KPI 19 Residual Household Waste produced per household (kg)  

KPI 20 Percentage CTAX payed using DDeb payment method  
 

2.3 For the KPIs that did not meet their quarterly target, the following 
 context is offered, 
 

 Speed of processing Council Tax and Housing Benefits claims.  
KPIs 11, 12 and 13 Speed of processing new Council Tax Reduction 

claims and changes of circumstances for HB and CTR claims all failed to 

meet their target in quarter three.  The speed of processing was 

impacted by a number of contributory factors including, an increase in 

the number of new claims, changes to universal credit notifications, 

additional statutory functions including Test and Trace Payments and 

Council Tax Hardship Fund administration, and staff training and the 

Christmas closure.   

 KPI 17 % of FOI requests resolved within timescale.  This KPI was 

impacted by an increase in the number of FOIs received during the 

quarter and changes to staff cover.  Additional staff members have 

received training to provide resilience to the role going forward. 

  
 KPI 19 – Residual Waste collected per Household. 

This KPI is non-corporately owned, and is dependent on the activity of 

others (households).  This has been impacted by the lockdown and 

seasonal variations. 

  

3.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
3.1 Throughout the quarter, while mitigating the ongoing challenges of the 
 Covid 19 pandemic, key corporate and operational activities were 

Page 33



  OSC010421 
 

 

4 

 
 

 maintained and the impacts on operational delivery were assessed by 
 the Corporate Leadership Team through the Performance Framework.    
 
3.2 Strategic and partnership activity continued and progress was reported 
 to Full Council on 15th December 2020 through the Mayors Executive 
 Report.   
 
3.3 The 2020-2024 Corporate Strategy was agreed by Full Council on 15th 
 December 2020 and work on the outline delivery plan has commenced. 
 
 

4.          STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS   
 
4.1 Legal comments are: No legal issues arise from this report 

4.2 The Monitoring Officer’s comments are: This report provides a progress 
 update to the Executive on key deliverables arising from the Corporate 
 Strategy. Any legal issues arising from any individual key deliverables will 
 be dealt with as appropriate.  
 
4.3 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: Contained within the report 

 The Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, 2020/21 Budget and 

 Capital Plan  underpins the Corporate Strategy 

4.4 EIA Comments:  The Corporate Strategy and Service Plans against which 

 performance is measured have undergone Equality Impact Assessments.  

 Individual projects and partnership delivery against the Corporate 

 Delivery Plan are subject  to provide EIAs. 

4.5 Policy Framework:  Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules as set 

 down in the Council’s Constitution. This report directly reports on the 

 delivery of the Corporate Strategy and associated documents. 

5.   APPENDICIES   Appendix A – KPI Report for Q3 of 2020/21 
 

 

Page 34



1 

Quarterly KPI Report for Quarter Three of 2020/21             Appendix A
 

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target for 
Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Trend compared to 
the same quarter 

last year. 

Notes 
Annual target 

for this KPI 

KPI 1 Percentage of Council 
Tax collected 

82.88% 71.37% 11.51%  

 
Compared to 83.95 

% in the same 
quarter last year 

 98% collected 

KPI 2 Number empty homes 
<6months brought back into 
use 

100 60 40  

 
Compared to 84 

homes in the same 
quarter last year 

 Figures taken from Council Tax data 
80 empty 

homes 

KPI 3 Number of new homes 
approved 

45 homes 
approved 

 
50 -5  

 
Compared to 27 new 
homes approved in 

Q3 last year 

45 new homes were approved in Q3.  
  
Against the annual target of 200 new 
homes approved, the cumulative 
figure of 180 at the end of Q3 shows 
that the PI on target for the year. 
  
 By comparison a cumulative total of 
153 new homes had been approved 
by the end of quarter there last year. 

200 homes 

KPI 4 Number of new homes 
built 

37 new 
homes built  

35 2  

 
Compared to 50 new 

homes built in the 
same quarter last 

year. 

Against an annual target of 140 
homes, the cumulative total of 108 
for the year to date shows that the PI 
is on target for the year.  By 
comparison 136 new homes had been 
built by the end of Q3 last year. 

140 homes 

P
age 35



2 

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target for 
Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Trend compared to 
the same quarter 

last year. 

Notes 
Annual target 

for this KPI 

KPI 5 Number of AFFORDABLE 
homes BUILT 

0 3.5 -3.5  

 
Compared to 0 in 
the same quarter 

last year 

Although there were no affordable 
homes were built in Q3, there were a 
total of 34 built across Q1 and Q2 of 
2020/21, this exceeds the overall 
annual target of 14 (10% of affordable 
homes approved). 

14 homes 

KPI 6 Number of larger family 
and aspirational homes built 

27 5 22  

 
Compared to 21 in 
the same quarter 
last year. 

Total of 57 aspirational home have 
been built in the year to date 

21 homes 

KPI 7 External funding for 
Economic Development 
Secured 

£0.00 £125000 -£125000   

No new external funding secured in 
Q3, however the cumulative total for 
funding secured in the year to date is 
£2056649.00 which already exceeds 
the annual target by £1,556,649.00 

£500000.00 

KPI 8 Percentage of Non-
domestic Rates Collected 

95.20% 74.70% 20.50%  
 

Compared to 94.37 
last year 

 
99.6% 

collected 

KPI 9 Local people supported 
with employability and skills 

28 15 13  
 

Compared to 20 in 
Q3 last year 

Sector Development x 5 
Wage subsidy x 6 
Employability Fund x 12 
Bespoke Support x 2 
NVQ X 3 

65 people 

KPI 10 Speed of processing - 
new HB claims 

14 18 3  
 

Compared to 8.8 
 18 days 

P
age 36



3 

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target for 
Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Trend compared to 
the same quarter 

last year. 

Notes 
Annual target 

for this KPI 

days in the same 
quarter last year 

KPI 11 Speed of processing - 
new CTR claims 

30.91 18 12.91  

 
Compared to 13 
days in the same 
quarter last year 

The speed of processing claims has 
been impacted by an increase in the 
number of new claims and changes to 
universal credit notifications, 
additions to the statutory functions of 
the Benefits Team in response to the 
Covid Pandemic, including Test and 
Trace Payments and Council Tax 
Hardship Fund administration, staff 
training and Christmas closure. 

18 days 

KPI 12 Speed of processing - 
changes of circumstances for 
HB claims 

13.25 10 3.25  

 
Compared to  5.3 
days in the same 
quarter last year 

10 days 

KPI 13 Speed of processing - 
changes of circumstances for 
CTR claims 

18.62 10 8.62  

 
Compared to  5.4 
days in the same 
quarter last year 

10 days 

KPI 14 Homeless relief cases 94% 90% 4%   29 of 31 cases within 56 days 
90% 

Resolved in 
timeframe 

KPI 15 Domestic Abuse 
Project 

100% 90% 10%    
90% 

satisfaction 

KPI 16 Percentage of 
complaints resolved at stage 
one 

93.00% 90.00% 3.00%   

85 Complaints opened 
77 Stage 1 
6 Stage 2 and 2 Stage 3 

90.00% 
Resolved at 

stage 1 

KPI 17 % of FOI requests 
resolved within timescale 

82% 85.00% -3%  
 

Compared to 95% of 

191 FOIs opened.  156 Closed within 
20 days.  35 breached   

90.00% 

P
age 37



4 

Key Performance Indicator Value at 
end of Q3 

 Target for 
Q3 

 Value Vs 
Target  

Was the 
target 
met? 

Trend compared to 
the same quarter 

last year. 

Notes 
Annual target 

for this KPI 

KPIs resolved in 
timeframe in Q3 last 

year 

KPI 18 Percentage of 
household waste sent for 
reuse, recycling and 
composting   

37% 37% -  

 
Compared to 39.75 
in the same quarter 

last year. 

Actual for Q3 was 30% and 
cumulative total for the year so far 
was 37% at the end of Q3. 

37.00% 

KPI 19 Residual Household 
Waste produced per 
household (kg) 

122.5 kg 100 kg 22.5 kg  
 

Compared to 112 kg 
last year 

Q3 figures unavailable at time of 4961 
tonnes of residual waste was 
collected in Q3, this equates to 122.5 
kg per household. 

400 kg 

KPI 20 Percentage CTAX 
payed using DDeb payment  

62.67% 60% 2.67%    60% 

KPI 21 % of 'major' planning 
applications determined 
within 13 weeks 

100.00% 65.00% 35.00%    65.00% 

KPI 22 % of planning 'minor' 
planning applications 
determined within 8 weeks 

95.50% 80.00% 15.50%    80.00% 

KPI 23 % of 'other' 
applications determined 
within 8 weeks 

100.00% 80.00% 20.00%    80.00% 

KPI 24 % of planning appeals 
dismissed 

100.00% 80.00% 20.00%    80.00% 

P
age 38



5 

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



      
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Task and Finish Group Monitoring 

Task and Finish 

Group 

 

Chair of Task 
and Finish 
Group 

Progress  Next Step  Estimated 

Completion 

Date 

Recycling Review Cllr Jeanette 
Forster 

Membership 
confirmed. 

Initial scope confirmed. Next meeting to 
include the relevant officers. 

June/July 
2021 
 
 

Health and Wellbeing 
North Copeland 

Cllr John Kane Membership 
confirmed. 

Initial scope drafted. Next meeting will 
confirm scope and best way to move 
forward. 

March 2022 

Health and Wellbeing 
South Copeland 

Cllr Fee Wilson Membership 
confirmed. 

Initial scope confirmed. Next meeting will 
look to establish interviews with relevant 
parties. 

March 2022 

Housing Cllr Mike 
Hawkins 

Membership 
confirmed. 

Group has agreed to delay moving 
forward until Q3 with main project. Small 
projects will continue in the meantime. 

TBC 

Social Media Policy 
Review 

TBC Membership TBC Confirm membership and set up initial 
meeting date with members 

TBC 

 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Standing Items (Items will only appear on the agenda should there be an update) 

Item Corporate Plan Priority Purpose Lead Officer 

Executive Forward Plan 
 

All To identify any forthcoming 
items which the Committee 
may consider. 

Chief Executive 

Update from Cumbria 
Health Scrutiny Committee 

Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities 

To receive an update from 
the Cumbria Health and 
Scrutiny Committee from 
the nominated Copeland 
representative. 

Director of Growth and 
Inclusive Communities 

Update from the Single 
Table Trade Union Group 
(STTUG) Representative 

A Commercial Council To receive an update from 
the Single Table Trade Union 
Group (STTUG) from the 
nominated Overview and 
Scrutiny representative.  

Human Resources Manager 

Housing A Place for Growth and 
Healthy and Inclusive 
Communities 

To receive any reports from 
the Strategic Housing and 
Social Inclusion Manager. 

Strategic Housing and Social 
Inclusion Manager 

Task and Finish Group 
Updates 

All To update the Committee on 
the progress of Task and 
Finish Groups. 

Scrutiny Officer 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work 
Programme 

A Commercial Council For the Committee to plan 
their work for the municipal 
year. 

Scrutiny Officer 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 11



Agenda Items for Committee Meetings 

Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

15th April 
2021 
 

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 3 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 3 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

 Monitoring Officers 
Report 

 Report on 2020/21 
Monitoring Officer issues 
and involvement 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

10th June 
2021 

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 4 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 4 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

P
age 44



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

 Citizen’s Advice 
Presentation 

All Presentation to OSC from 
Citizen’s Advice regarding 
CBC grant 

 

 Outside Bodies Annual 
Report 2021 

All Annual Outside Bodies 
Report for 2021 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

 Annual Scrutiny Report 
2021  

All Annual Scrutiny Report for 
2021 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

1st July 2021 Budget Monitoring All Monitoring discussion 
regarding the 2020/21 
Budget 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 DFG Discretionary 
Payments Presentation 

All Presentation given 
regarding the DFG Pilot 

 

 Housing Complaints 
Guidance 

All Presentation on the 
Guidance created to help 
councillors regarding 
Housing Complaints 

 

 Recycling Task & Finish 
Group Report 

 Report to be presented by 
Group Chair to inform OSC 
on the findings. 

 

P
age 45



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

5th August 
2021 

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 1 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 1 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

 Law Centre 
Presentation 

All Presentation to OSC from 
Law Centre regarding CBC 
grant 

 

2nd 
September 
2021 

Town Funding Updates 
(Whitehaven, Cleator 
Moor, Egremont & 
Millom) 

All Updates to be given 
regarding the Future High 
Street Fund, Towns Deal & 
Borderlands Funding 

Chief Executive 

 Street Lighting Report All Report to update OSC on 
the Street Lighting issue in 
Copeland 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

 Engagement with 
Schools Update 

All Update regarding the 
engagement agreed with 
schools 

 

P
age 46



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

7th October 
2021 

Tourism Presentation All Presentation to update OSC 
on Tourism in Copeland 

 

 Engagement with 
Town Councils Update 

All Update regarding the 
engagement agreed with 
town councils 

 

4th 
November 
2021 

2020/21 Finance 
Report – Quarter 2 

All Report on the financial 
position of Copeland 
Council at the end of 
quarter three of 2020/21 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 2020/21 Council 
Performance Plan – 
Quarter 2 

All Report on the performance 
of Copeland Council at the 
end of quarter three of 
2020/21 

Director of Corporate 
Services and 
Commercial  
Strategy (M.O.) 

 Budget Monitoring All Monitoring discussion 
regarding the 2020/21 
Budget 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

2nd 
December 
2021 

Yearly Review All A Review by Scrutiny Officer 
to highlight the work done 
throughout the year, work 
to do in 2022 and any 
improvements 

 

P
age 47



Date Expected Item Corporate Plan Priority Detail Lead Officer 

18th January 
2022 
(Special) 

Draft Budget All The Mayor will present their 
Draft Budget proposals for 
the year 2022/2023 

Director of Financial 
Resources 

 

Items to be programmed into the OSC Work Programme 2021/22 

 

P
age 48


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 19 February and 22 March 2021
	Minutes
	$$MDocPackPublic 220321
	Minutes


	4 Executive Forward Plan
	7 2020/2021 Finance Report - Quarter 3
	8 2020/2021 Council Performance Plan - Quarter 3
	Appendix A - KPI Report for Q3 of 2020-21 (OSC)

	10 Task and Finish Group Updates
	11 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

